# MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL, HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL, MONDAY, MAY 6<sup>th</sup>, 1929 AT 8:00 P.M.

Present: His Worship Mayor Morden

Alderman Anderson Alderman Bridgman Alderman Cartwright Alderman Vance Alderman White Alderman Wilson

The Minutes of the Regular meeting of Council, held on April 22<sup>nd</sup>, 1929 copies, in the Council Chamber, City Hall, copies of which had previously been supplied to each member of the Council, were taken as read, and on motion of Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White, adopted.

The Minutes of the Special meeting of Council, held on April 29<sup>th</sup>, 1929 copies, in the Council Chamber, City Hall, copies of which had previously been supplied to each member of the Council, were taken as read, and on motion of Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White, adopted, with the following exception: That the recommendation of Alderman Wilson in Paragraph 6, page 90 of the Minute Book, the last clause of which reads "The City Engineer be given power to act in selecting his own man", should be amended to read "The City Engineer be given power to act in selecting his own man, who must be a Ratepayer in the City".

Correspondence was received, read and dealt with as follows:

From the Registrar, County Court, Vancouver, being receipt for the registration of Bylaws numbered:

- 1060 "The City of North Vancouver Local Improvement Debenture Consolidation Bylaw No. 1, 1929.
- 1061 "The City of North Vancouver Local Improvement Debenture Consolidation Bylaw No. 2, 1929.
- 1062 "City of North Vancouver Land Sales Bylaw 1929" Number 7".
- 1063 "City of North Vancouver Land Sales Bylaw 1929" Number 8".
- and 1064 to 1088, being 25 Initiative Bylaws for Concrete Sidewalks, as per list formerly recorded.

Received and filed.

From the Inspector of B.C. Municipalities, being Certificate of Approval numbered C. 1346 covering "The City of North Vancouver Street Improvement and Construction Loan Bylaw 1929", Number 1051.

Received and filed.

From James Blair, 159 Keith Road West, applying for permission to build a garage on the City owned 50 foot roadway, immediately west of Lot 7, Block 113, D.L. 548, on which he has a residence erected.

The Clerk reported that the area on which it was proposed to set the garage was dedicated as a street allowance, running from the South side of Victoria Park West to 6<sup>th</sup> Street, and as such was a public highway.

Moved by Alderman Vance, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that Mr. Blair be advised that the property in question is a City street and the Council cannot grant him permission to erect a garage thereon.

From Mrs. Edith McKinnon, 259 – 27<sup>th</sup> Street East, requesting that the lane be repaired on the West side of St. Andrew's Avenue, between 26<sup>th</sup> and 27<sup>th</sup> Streets, by taking out the large rocks and filling in with gravel.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the application be referred to the Board of Works Committee and City Engineer for report.

From Chas. McWilliam, 314 – 26<sup>th</sup> Street East, requesting that the water main now being laid on 26<sup>th</sup> Street to a short distance East of Ridgeway Avenue be extended to St. Andrew's Avenue, or to his address, as the water pressure on his present connection from 27<sup>th</sup> Street is extremely low.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the application be referred to the Waterworks Committee and City Engineer for report.

From Mrs. H.M. Cross, 1141 Rockland Avenue, Victoria, expressing dissatisfaction with the proposed settlement offered re Lot 2, Block 9, D.L. 265. Mrs. Cross suggests an exchange of the lot and a payment of 50¢ per yard for the gravel taken instead of accepting the City's proposal to pay for 300 yards of gravel at 25¢ per yard, or in the alternative, the choice of any City lot assessed for the same amount as Lot 2 alleged to have been damaged.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the correspondence be referred o the City Solicitor and Engineer for further action.

From the Secretary of the Union of British Columbia Municipalities requesting payment of the annual fee for 1929 of \$50.00 and stating that copies of resolutions for this year's convention should be in his hands on or before August 1<sup>st</sup> next.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Treasurer be and is hereby authorized to issue a cheque for \$50.00 in favour of the Union of British Columbia Municipalities in payment of the annual dues for 1929, and that any resolutions the City may have for consideration at the forthcoming Convention be left for preparation in the hands of the Clerk and Solicitor.

From H. Nowell, 18 Hastings Street West, Vancouver, Secretary of a Public Meeting held in the City of North Vancouver on Wednesday, May 1<sup>st</sup>, enclosing resolution protesting against the formation of a Medical Health Unit for the following reasons:

- 1<sup>st</sup> The purpose of such Medical Health Unit is considered to be purely a move to increase the power of, and to give emoluments to, members of the Allopathic or Medical profession and its adherents, and is not in the interest of health in its broadest sense.
- 2<sup>nd</sup> It is antagonistic to the belief and practice of a large proportion of the population, who by bitter experience and honest study have become convinced that, instead of health being gained by Allopathic so-called preventive medicine, which includes the dangerous immunizing tests with sera, vaccines, etc., such has frequently been the cause of premature death and permanent injury, and is therefore a serious menace to the health of the community.
- In view of the fact that serums and vaccines are being constantly changed as the public discover the harm resulting from their use, and this fact demonstrating the fallacy of such measures, further in view of the fact that no demand for such measures ever arose from the people, but always from the medical profession, and believing that every citizen has sovereign right to his own body, and that the bodies of our children in school should not be considered as clinical or experimental material for doctors and nurses. And further being convinced that "They that are whole need not a physician but they are sick" this faith, logically giving the death blow to so-called "Preventive Medication":

THEREFORE this mass meeting of residents of West and North Vancouver and Lynn Valley called to consider this question, request the three Councils of the North Shore to refuse the establishment of any so-called Health Unit, and that in the event of the three North Shore Councils deciding in favour of the establishment of a "Health Unit" that before definite action is taken, the matter be submitted to a plebiscite.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the communication be referred for consideration to the Special Committee investigating the unified control of Health Inspection on the North Shore.

From W.H. MacFarlane, Walkerton, Ontario, reciting former objections taken to the assessment levied on property he owns in the City, and suggesting that a report of the Special Assessment recently made by Mr. A.R. MacKenzie, be sent to all the owners of City property.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Vance and resolved that Mr. MacFarlane, be advised that the report of the Special Survey of City properly comprises some 364 pages, his suggestions, therefore, cannot be carried out on account of the expense involved, and further assuring him that the land assessment of the City has been receiving the serious consideration of the Council for some time past.

From the City License Inspector advising that a license to operate a Billiard and Pool Room at 1439 Lonsdale Avenue had been issued to Henry Chapman, 1490 Kingsway, Vancouver, who had furnished references satisfactory to himself and the Chief of Police.

Filed.

From the City Treasurer, advising that the following purchases on Sinking Fund account had been made on the instructions of the Finance and Ferry Committees respectively:

£200.0.0	City of North Vancouver (Bylaw 178)	\$958.63
	4 1/2 % Bonds due Sept. 1 <sup>st</sup> , 1931 at 98.49 (yield 5.15%)	
£1300.0.0.	City of North Vancouver (Bylaw 210)	\$6,213.42
	4 ½% due March 1 <sup>st</sup> , 1932, at 98.21 (yield 5.15%)	
£800.0.0.	C.N.R. (Guaranteed by the province of Manitoba)	\$3,824.04
	4% Debenture Stock due June 30 <sup>th</sup> , 1930 at 98.22 (yield	
	5.25%	

Moved by Alderman Vance, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the action of the Committees and the purchases be and are hereby confirmed.

From the City Engineer stating that the Parks Superintendent had recommended the purchase of a Horse at an estimated cost of \$150.00 to be used principally for grass cutting in the Parks and general Board of Works. Cost of feed estimated at \$1 per day.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the recommendation be approved and a Horse purchased at an approximate cost of \$150.00.

From the City Engineer submitting two cross sections of 6<sup>th</sup> Street from Lonsdale to St. David's Avenue showing:

- (1) Street graded full width with the minimum of excavating and filling.
- (2) A 24 foot roadway with a concrete sidewalk on either side of the curb line and without the street being graded.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the consideration be referred to the Committee of the Whole.

From the City Building Inspector reporting on behalf of himself and the Fire Chief on the building at 150 -15<sup>th</sup> Street East (The Grange Infants Home) stating it is a large frame building lined inside with "V Joint" which is covered with varnishing oil, making it very inflammable. The officials expressed the opinion that the building is not suitable for the purpose of an Infants Home.

Attention was drawn to the fact that the Officials reporting had full knowledge that negotiations for the registration of the building as a "Nursing Home" had been under the consideration of the Council, and no objection had been taken by them at that time.

Moved by Alderman Vance, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the communication be received, and Mrs. Kirkpatrick notified of the declaration of the Officials.

From the City Sanitary Inspector reporting that condition of the ditch at 17<sup>th</sup> Street and St. George's Avenue is clean, but on account of a hard-pan formation the moisture is not being absorbed. The only permanent remedy would be a Sanitary Sewer.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that Mr. William Geekie, the complainant, be advised that the ditch will be kept as clean

as possible, and the laying of a concrete sidewalk in the block is under advisement as part of next year's programme.

From the Midland Pacific Terminal Ltd. regarding sewage discharge from a residence directly north of their office building. The City Engineer stated the nuisance complained of was on the property of Mr. Firth, and was caused by the operations of the Harbour Commissioners Contractors on the Waterfront, who had cut the sewer connection that was already installed.

The Engineer suggested the installation of Septic Tank at an estimated cost of \$60.00.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the complaint be referred to the Board of Works Committee and City Engineer with power to act.

From the City Engineer recommending the purchase of a second-hand Half-ton truck for use in the Sewer Department, at a cost not to exceed \$250.00, the truck to be used in taking tools needing repair to the Blacksmith Shop and general work in connection with sewers.

Moved by Alderman Vance, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the communication be referred tot the Board of Works Committee for consideration and report.

From the President of the North Vancouver Real Estate Association suggesting that on account of the recent Stock Market conditions in Oil and Mining Shares having temporarily diverted attention from Real Estate the option on City properties to that Organization be extended to August 15<sup>th</sup>, 1929, as it was possible better results in the way of sales could be obtained by that date.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the extension asked for be granted – August 15<sup>th</sup>, 1929.

From the Mayor and Tulip Festival Officials of the City of Bellingham, Washington, cordially inviting the Mayor and Members of Council and the people of this community to the 10<sup>th</sup> Annual Tulip Festival, May 9<sup>th</sup>, 10<sup>th</sup> and 11<sup>th</sup>, 1929.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the invitation be accepted with thanks, and as many members of the Council attend as possible.

From the North Vancouver junk Co. requesting an opportunity to quote on any junk the City may have for sale.

Reference was made in the Council to a recent offering of scrap pipe and equipment by the City Ferries which could be quoted on if still unsold.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the local Junk Co. be advised to see the Ferry Superintendent, and the communication filed for reference.

## **TENDERS**

From Mr. and Mrs. John McGill, 128 – 19<sup>th</sup> Street East, offering the sum of \$100 cash for Lot 12, re-sub. 4, 5 and 6, Block 7, D.L. 549.

From C.L. Stonehouse, 134 – 19<sup>th</sup> Street East, offering the sum of \$100 cash each for Lots 10 and 11, Resub. 4, 5 and 6, Block 7, D.L. 549.

From the City Assessor, reporting on the above described properties stating each lot is 33 feet by 138 feet, and situated on 19<sup>th</sup> Street, approximately 200 feet East of Lonsdale Avenue, and the cash offerings submitted are on a par with prices lately obtained.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the offers of Mr. and Mrs. John McGill and C.L. Stonehouse be accepted, subject to the customary procedure being taken in posting the lots for sale at the price of \$100 cash for each lot, and that the necessary bylaws be prepared and submitted to the Council.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the application of Alexander Smith and Co., as agents for Alice Hughes, 628 – 9<sup>th</sup> Street East, to purchase Lot 12, Block 93, D.L. 550, at the price of \$150.00 cash be approved, and that the necessary Bylaw be prepared and submitted to Council.

Tenders were received fro printing 5,000 copies of "Financial Statistics" for inclusion to Taxpayers with the 1929 tax statements:

North Shore Press	\$19.75
Shoemaker, McLean & Veitch	\$24.25

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Vance and resolved that the lowest tender be accepted, namely that of the North Shore Press at \$19.75.

Tenders were received for Ferry Uniforms, Jerseys and caps, from the following firms:

UNIFORMS	
Hartle Bros. (Union Shop):	
#910	\$39.00 per suit
#912	\$40.00 per suit
#920	\$41.00 per suit
#922	\$42.00 per suit
#923	\$43.00 per suit
A.J. Kennedy (Union Shop):	
#40B Suite \$45.00; Pants \$13.75	\$58.75 complete
Irish Serge Deckhand Pants	\$10.00 per pair
Elite Tailors (Union Shop):	
Complete Uniform \$47.50; Pants, same cloth as uniform	\$58.00 complete
\$10.50 per pair	
Pants, Irish Serge	\$8.50 per pair

Gordon Campbell Ltd.:		
#8985 Full Uniform (with cap) \$33.00; Pants \$8.10		\$41.10 complete
#8980 Full Uniform (with cap) \$37.50; Pants \$8.80		\$46.30 complete
(Buttons, stripes and cap badges extra)		. ,
James Badger:		
#461 3 PIECE Uniform \$42.60; Pants \$10.95		\$53.55 complete
#460F 3 piece Uniform \$37.95; Pants \$9.65		\$47.60 complete
#559 3 piece Uniform \$42.60; Pants \$10.95		\$53.55 complete
#936 Seamen's Pants		\$5.75 per pair
#495 Deckhands Pants		\$3.35 per pair
Tom the Tailor:		
#1185 Coats, vests and trousers \$48.00; trousers \$12.00		\$60.00 complete
#5574 Coats, vests & trousers \$47.50; trousers \$11.75		\$59.25 complete
#898075 Coats, vests & trousers \$47.00; trousers \$11.50		\$58.50 complete
#5926 Coats, vests & trousers \$46.00; trousers \$11.00		\$57.00 complete
#232 Deckhands trousers		\$9.50 per pair
#4211 Deckhands trousers		\$10.00 per pair
The Desiration of Section 1		ψισισο μοι μαιι
JERSEYS:		
Burrard Knitting Mills:		
Navy blue jerseys, lettered NVCF	\$48.0	00 dozen \$4.00 each
Pride of the West Knitting Mills:		
Pure Worsted Wool Seamen's Jerseys	\$51.9	00 dozen \$4.35 each
James Badger:		
100% Pure Wool Jerseys	\$54.0	00 dozen \$4.50 each
, and the second		·
Tom the Tailor:		
Jerseys \$54.0		00 dozen \$4.50 each
CAPS:		
Thomas H. Hill:		
12 Seamen's Caps		\$1.75 each
11 Officers Caps (with covers)		\$2.50 each
The series of th		φ2.00 000.1
Hartle Brothers:		\$3.50 each
Gordon Campbell Ltd.:		
#8985 (White duck tops 75 cents)		\$3.00 each
#8980 (White duck tops 75 cents)		\$3.00 each
		,
Tom The Tailor:		

Caps (with two white tops included)	\$3.75 each
Caps	\$2.50 each

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the tenders be referred to the Ferry Superintendent for tabulation and report and the Ferry Committee be empowered to act in comparing samples, and placing orders.

Tenders were received for Firemen's Uniforms from the following firms:

Elite Tailors (Union Shop):	
#1875	\$55.00 per suit
#2376	\$55.00 per suit
Tom the Tailor:	
#101950 Coat, vest, 2 pairs of trousers	\$59.50
#11185 Coat, vest, 2 pairs of trousers	\$58.00
\$898065 Coat, vest, 2 pairs of trousers	\$56.00
Hartle Bros. (Union Shop):	
#910 - Suit \$39.00; Pants \$10.00	\$49.00
#970 – Suit \$4.00; Pants \$11.00	\$52.00
#971 – Suit \$42.00; Pants \$12.00	\$54.00
#972 – Suit \$43.00; Pants \$13.00	\$56.00
#973 – Suit \$44.00; Pants \$13.50	\$57.50

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Vance and resolved that the tenders be referred to the Fire Chief for tabulation and report, and the Fire and Light Committee have power to act in comparing samples and placing the business.

## DUE ACCOUNTS

Reports and recommendations by the Finance, Police, Board of Works, Waterworks, School, Ferries, Health, Parks and Fire and Light Committees, on due accounts were submitted by the respective Chairmen and read to the meeting and the Treasurer was authorized to pay the accounts to the amounts following:

Finance		\$1,915.00
School		\$12,080.35
Police		\$1,500.00
Ferry		\$8,848.65
Board of Works	\$447.00	
	<u>7055.81</u>	\$7,532.81
Waterworks	\$358.90	
	<u>587.21</u>	\$946.11
Fire & Light		\$1,699.00
Parks	\$271.60	

	<u>\$1378.37</u>	\$1,649.97
Health	\$345.00	
	<u>280.00</u>	\$625.00

From W.E.Ditchburn, Indian Commissioner for the Province of British Columbia, denying liability on behalf of the Department for the Local Improvement Tax on the proposed 6<sup>th</sup> Street (Forbes to Chesterfield) Sanitary Sewer. Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Vance and resolved that the City Solicitor take the matter up with the Department with a view to obtaining assurance of payment of the Local Improvement Tax as in the past.

From the City Treasurer, submitting cash statement for the month ending April 30<sup>th</sup>, 1929, showing receipts - \$18,976.85; expenditures \$44,263.47.

Received and filed.

## REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

Moved by Alderman Vance, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the following report of the Finance com be adopted:

RECOMMEND that the Burrard Laundry Ltd. be requested to pay the sum of \$100 per month on account of all water rates until the arrears have been paid in full – arrears are over \$400 – monthly bill runs about \$60. The time given to pay up the arrears is therefore about ten months.

RECOMMEND that the report of the City Relief Officer for the month of April be adopted, showing relief totalling \$529.45, distributed as follows:

Monthly assistance	\$80.00	
Relief to Indigents	\$224.75	
Payments to Institutions	\$224.70	\$529.45

RECOMMEND that the "Financial Statistics" submitted by the City Treasurer as being suitable for inclusion with the 1929 Tax Statements be approved and 5000 copies ordered printed.

Moved by Alderman Vance, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the following report of the Ferry Committee be adopted:

RECOMMEND that the Ferry Superintendent be authorized to call for tenders for one year's supply of coal for the City Ferries, subject to the usual conditions. Tenders to be submitted at the next regular meeting of the Council, May 20<sup>th</sup>.

RECOMMEND that the Committee be given more time to consider and report of the communication from the Canadian Merchants Service Guild in respect to the scale of wages paid the Masters and Mates on the City Ferries. RECOMMEND that the further extension of time be granted for the consideration of a renewal of the lease of the Ferry Refreshment Stand at the Vancouver Terminal, due to the absence from the City of the Chairman of the Ferry Committee and negotiations under way not being completed.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the following report of the Board of Works Committee be adopted:

RECOMMEND that the application of Thomas Cook of  $424 - 3^{rd}$  street East be granted, to have the lane opened and graded form St. David's Avenue westerly to the rear of his property, at an estimated cost of \$50.00.

RECOMMEND that the application of Fred Mott of 628 – 3<sup>rd</sup> Street East, be granted, to have the ditch deepened on the North side of the lane from the rear of his property westward to Ridgeway Avenue.

RECOMMEND that the application of S.H. Moulang be granted, to have the lane between Fourth and Fifth Streets graded form the east side of Queensbury Avenue eastward a distance of about two hundred feet to the rear of a new house which he has constructed, at an estimated cost of \$60.00. Also that a plank crossing be constructed across Fourth Street in front of the new residence, to connect with the sidewalk on the south side.

RECOMMEND that the request of the Lonsdale Motors Ltd. corner of 15<sup>th</sup> Street and Lonsdale Avenue be granted, to have the plank crossing over the gutter on Lonsdale Avenue extended about 18 feet south in front of the new entrance provided for the garage.

RECOMMEND that the application of Mrs. C.G. Kendall be granted, to have a plank crossing constructed across 17<sup>th</sup> Street East, to give access to a new house at number 449.

RECOMMEND that the application of William Geekie of 256 – 17<sup>th</sup> Street East and others, asking that a sidewalk be laid in their block, be laid over until the beginning of next year, when a concrete walk could be included in the list of proposed work for the year.

RECOMMEND that the application of H.W. Young, of 153 – 18<sup>th</sup> Street East, be granted, to have a three-plank walk about 150 feet in length with a crossing to connect to the north side, constructed in front of the two new houses at the above address.

RECOMMEND that the application of A.E. McQuarrie and 12 others be granted, to have St. George's Avenue graded between 23<sup>rd</sup> Street and 25<sup>th</sup> Street at an

estimated cost of \$1500, the cost of this work to be taken from the road construction bylaw. This work was already authorized by the Council last year.

RECOMMEND that the application of G. Blevings of 346 Brand Street be granted, to have a few loads of earth filled in on the lower side of said street, to give access to a new garage which he has constructed.

RECOMMEND that the application of D.A. Stewart of  $326 - 23^{rd}$  Street West, be dealt with by authorizing the filling in of the low ground complained of when any earth is available for that purpose. In the meantime, I would recommend that Mr. Stewart be notified that the stagnant water complained of is standing in a trench alongside of his property, which apparently ahs been excavated to obtain material for filling in his lot, and that if Mr. Stewart would fill up this trench to its original level, the nuisance would be eliminated. If a drain is to be constructed as requested, it would have to cross private property, and the owners' consent would have to be obtained.

RECOMMEND that the application of the School Board be granted, to have the street ditch on the south side of 22<sup>nd</sup> Street deepened, adjacent to the Lonsdale School grounds, sufficient to prevent water from overflowing onto the grounds.

RECOMMEND that the application of Annie Spencer of 532 – 28<sup>th</sup> Street West, be granted, to have the roadway on 29<sup>th</sup> Street at the rear of her property, gravelled for a distance of about fifty feet.

RECOMMEND that the application of J. McDiarmid of  $828 - 20^{th}$  Street West, be granted, to have some gravel placed on  $20^{th}$  Street form Hamilton Avenue to the above address.

RECOMMEND that the uncleared portion of Ridgeway Avenue between 16<sup>th</sup> Street and 17<sup>th</sup> Street be cleared of brush, at an estimated cost of \$50.

RECOMMEND that some gravel be placed on Keith Road from Mahon Avenue to Chesterfield Avenue to fill up the ruts.

RECOMMEND that a three plank walk be constructed on the North side of 21<sup>st</sup> Street between Mahon Avenue and Chesterfield Avenue with suitable trestles over the ravines, estimated cost \$350.00.

In subsequent discussion it was agree that the portion of the sidewalk on trestles and over the ravine be constructed as a four foot sidewalk.

RECOMMEND that the Harry Duker Sign Co. be granted permission to erect 12 display signs at locations already designated, and in addition 2 signs at the following described locations:

East side of building at 122 – 1<sup>st</sup> Street West. Southwest corner of 3<sup>rd</sup> Street and St. Patrick's Avenue. all signs to be erected to the satisfaction of the City Engineer as to set back and view point. The consent, in writing, of the owner of the residence at the southwest corner of Third Street and St. David's Avenue must be obtained before the erection of that sign can be proceeded with, and any other adjoining owners that the City Engineer may consider necessary in other localities.

RECOMMEND that the Board of Works Committee and the City Engineer be give power to act in repairing streets and crossings at the following locations:

#### STREETS:

St. Andrew's Avenue, 13<sup>th</sup> to 15<sup>th</sup> Streets. Keith Road intersection north at Barbecue. Keith and Sutherland, northwest corner. St. George's Avenue, 26<sup>th</sup> and 27<sup>th</sup> Streets.

#### **CROSSINGS:**

4<sup>th</sup> Street and Queensbury Avenue.

16<sup>th</sup> Street and Moody Avenue.

13<sup>th</sup> Street and St. George's Avenue.

RECOMMEND that the City Engineer bring in an estimate of the cost of repairing Keith Road, via Queen Mary School and Marine Drive, the necessity of keeping this section of roadway in good repair would be imperative when the new Hospital is opened.

RECOMMEND that the City Engineer be given power to act in fixing 13<sup>th</sup> Street opposite the Hospital where water connection was made.

RECOMMEND that the Roadway on the East side of Lonsdale Avenue from 19<sup>th</sup> to 23<sup>rd</sup> Streets be treated with an asphaltic surface.

The City Engineer reported he was now arranging with the General Construction Co., Vancouver, to carry out that work.

RECOMMEND that the City Engineer bring in an estimate of the cost of grading, macadamizing and surfacing in a similar manner as the potion now completed, the East side of Lonsdale Avenue from 23<sup>rd</sup> Street North to the City boundary.

RECOMMEND that the City Engineer bring in an estimate of the cost of repairing and surfacing St. Andrew's Avenue from 1<sup>st</sup> to 3<sup>rd</sup> Streets.

RECOMMEND that the Board of Works Committee and the City Engineer bring in a statement showing how it is proposed to spend the proceeds of the recent \$75,000.00 Street Improvement Bylaw, allocating the amounts fairly to all sections of the City. A copy to be filed with the Clerk at an early date, who in turn will mail copies to all the members of Council.

The City Engineer asked for the opinion of the Council as to the kind of road treatment desired on the Esplanade East from Lonsdale to St. George's Avenue.

RECOMMEND that in the meantime the Council only consider putting the roadbed in the same condition that it was before the construction of the Subway was commenced.

Moved by Alderman Vance, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the following report of the Fire and Light Committee be adopted:

RECOMMEND that payment be minuted of \$68.60 by the B.C. Electric Railway Co. in settlement of a claim for Fire hose run over by one of the Company's street cars on April 2<sup>nd</sup> last.

RECOMMEND that permission be given to the Forest Protective Service to use the Tower at the 13<sup>th</sup> Street Fire Hall as a central Look-out and Despatching Station during the summer of 1928.

RECOMMEND that the members of the Fire Department and the equipment be granted permission to participate in the Parade on May 24<sup>th</sup>, sponsored by the Local Order of Elks.

Alderman White, Chairman, reported that representatives of the Fire Underwriters' Association were now making a special survey of the City, and their report would be available at an early date.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the following report of the Parks Committee be adopted:

RECOMMEND that the guns in Victoria Park be anchored so that they cannot be moved by boys from the position in which they are placed.

## <u>MOTIONS</u>

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Vance and resolved that as there has been a great deal of publicity in the newspapers with respect the proposed sale of the Pacific Great Eastern Railway and all references to construction work have been centred on the Quesnel-Prince George section, and whereas North Vancouver is vitally interested in what the Government intends to do with the North Vancouver-Squamish section of the Railway.

Be it RESOLVED that His Worship the Mayor request the Provincial Government for an interview to discuss the Pacific Great Eastern Railway situation as it affects this City and that the Mayor appoint the delegation.

Alderman Vance, Chairman of the Special Committee appointed to investigate the possibilities of establishing a Free Port Area, invited all the members of Council to attend the meeting of the Committee in the City Hall on Tuesday afternoon, May 7<sup>th</sup> at 4

p.m. An invitation was also extended to the Board of Trade and Kiwanis Club to send representatives to the meeting. Mr. K.J. Burns, Port Superintendent, Vancouver Harbour Commissioners, was to be present, and Mr. L.D. Wilgress, Canada's Trade Commissioner to Germany had also promised to attend and address the meeting.

Alderman White referred to the inconvenience to patrons of the Pacific Stages Ltd. by the Time-table arranged for "Through buses" under the new Summer Schedule. The buses arrived at North Vancouver five minutes after the departure of the Ferry, thereby creating dissatisfaction among members of the travelling public.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Vance and resolved that the Clerk write to Pacific Stages Ltd., drawing their attention to this matter, and asking their cooperation in arranging their schedule so tat all buses will connect with the City Ferries.

### **BYLAWS**

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "Second Street – North (Mahon to Lot 36/136/271) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Vance and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Second Street – North (Mahon to Lot 36/136/271) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time. Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Vance, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "Second Street – North (Mahon to Lot 36/136/271) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Second Street – North (Mahon to Lot 36/136/271) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "Second Street – South (Chesterfield to Forbes) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Second Street – South (Chesterfield to Forbes) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Vance and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "Second Street – South (Chesterfield to Forbes) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Vance, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Second Street – South (Chesterfield to Forbes) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "Third Street – North (Mahon to Forbes) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Third Street – North (Mahon to Forbes) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "Third Street – North (Mahon to Forbes) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Vance and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Third Street – North (Mahon to Forbes) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Vance, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "Fourth Street – North (Chesterfield to Mahon) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the

Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Fourth Street – North (Chesterfield to Mahon) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "Fourth Street – North (Chesterfield to Mahon) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Fourth Street – North (Chesterfield to Mahon) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Vance and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "Sixth Street – North (Mahon to Forbes) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Vance, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Sixth Street – North (Mahon to Forbes) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "Sixth Street – North (Mahon to Forbes) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Sixth Street – North (Mahon to Forbes) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "Keith Road – South (Lonsdale to St. George's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Vance and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Keith Road – South (Lonsdale to St. George's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "Keith Road – South (Lonsdale to St. George's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Keith Road – South (Lonsdale to St. George's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "Keith Road – South (St. George's to Ridgeway) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Keith Road – South (St. George's to Ridgeway) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Vance and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "Keith Road – South (St. George's to Ridgeway) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Vance, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Keith Road – South (St. George's to Ridgeway) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "Keith Road – North (Lonsdale to Ridgeway) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Keith Road – North (Lonsdale to Ridgeway) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "Keith Road – North (Lonsdale to Ridgeway) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Vance and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Keith Road – North (Lonsdale to Ridgeway) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Vance, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "St. George's Avenue – West (10<sup>th</sup> to 12<sup>th</sup>) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "St. George's Avenue – West (10<sup>th</sup> to 12<sup>th</sup>) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "St. George's Avenue – West (10<sup>th</sup> to 12<sup>th</sup>) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "St. George's Avenue – West (10<sup>th</sup> to 12<sup>th</sup>) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Vance and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "St. George's Avenue – East (11<sup>th</sup> to 13<sup>th</sup>) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Vance, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "St. George's Avenue – East (11<sup>th</sup> to 13<sup>th</sup>) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "St. George's Avenue – East (11<sup>th</sup> to 13<sup>th</sup>) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "St. George's Avenue – East (11<sup>th</sup> to 13<sup>th</sup>) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "Eleventh Street – North (Lonsdale to St. Andrew's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Vance and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Eleventh Street – North (Lonsdale to St. Andrew's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time. Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Vance, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "Eleventh Street – North

(Lonsdale to St. Andrew's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Eleventh Street – North (Lonsdale to St. Andrew's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "Thirteenth Street – North (Lonsdale to St. Andrew's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Thirteenth Street – North (Lonsdale to St. Andrew's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "Thirteenth Street – North (Lonsdale to St. Andrew's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Vance and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Thirteenth Street – North (Lonsdale to St. Andrew's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Vance, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "Fourteenth Street – South (Jones to Forbes) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Fourteenth Street – South (Jones to Forbes) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "Fourteenth Street – South (Jones to Forbes) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Fourteenth Street – South (Jones to Forbes) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Vance and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "Fourteenth Street – North (Jones to Forbes) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Vance, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Fourteenth Street – North (Jones to Forbes) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "Fourteenth Street – North (Jones to Forbes) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Fourteenth Street – North (Jones to Forbes) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "Fourteenth Street – North (Chesterfield to Mahon) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Vance and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Fourteenth Street – North (Chesterfield to Mahon) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Vance, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "Fourteenth Street – North (Chesterfield to Mahon) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Fourteenth Street – North (Chesterfield to Mahon) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "Chesterfield Avenue – West (14<sup>th</sup> to 19<sup>th</sup>) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929"and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Chesterfield Avenue – West (14<sup>th</sup> to 19<sup>th</sup>) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Vance and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "Chesterfield Avenue – West (14<sup>th</sup> to 19<sup>th</sup>) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Vance, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Chesterfield Avenue – West (14<sup>th</sup> to 19<sup>th</sup>) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "Fifteenth Street – South (St. George's to Ridgeway) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Fifteenth Street – South (St. George's to Ridgeway) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Vance and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "Fifteenth Street – South (St. George's to Ridgeway) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Vance, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Fifteenth Street – South (St. George's to Ridgeway) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "Fifteenth Street – North (St. Andrew's to Queensbury) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Fifteenth Street – North (St. Andrew's to Queensbury) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time. Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "Fifteenth Street – North (St. Andrew's to Queensbury) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Vance and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Fifteenth Street – North (St. Andrew's to Queensbury) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time. Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Vance, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "Seventeenth Street – South (Chesterfield to Jones) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Seventeenth Street – South (Chesterfield to Jones) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "Seventeenth Street – South (Chesterfield to Jones) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Seventeenth Street – South (Chesterfield to Jones) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Vance and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "Eighteenth Street – North (St. George's to Chesterfield) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Vance, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Eighteenth Street – North (St. George's to Chesterfield) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time. Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "Eighteenth Street – North (St. George's to Chesterfield) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Eighteenth Street – North (St. George's to Chesterfield) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time. Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "Twentieth Street – North (Lonsdale to Lot 12/1/6/548) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings

at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Vance and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Twentieth Street – North (Lonsdale to Lot 12/1/6/548) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time. Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Vance, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "Twentieth Street – North (Lonsdale to Lot 12/1/6/548) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Twentieth Street – North (Lonsdale to Lot 12/1/6/548) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "Twentieth Street – South (Lonsdale to St. Andrew's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Vance and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Twentieth Street – South (Lonsdale to St. Andrew's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Vance, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "Twentieth Street – South (Lonsdale to St. Andrew's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Twentieth Street – South (Lonsdale to St. Andrew's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "Twenty-first Street – North (Lonsdale to Chesterfield) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Twenty-first Street – North (Lonsdale to Chesterfield) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Vance and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "Twenty-First Street – North (Lonsdale to Chesterfield) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Vance, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Twenty-first Street – North (Lonsdale to Chesterfield) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "Twenty-second Street – South (Mahon to Jones) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Twenty-second Street – South (Mahon to Jones) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time. Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "Twenty-Second Street – South (Mahon to Jones) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Vance and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Twenty-second Street – South (Mahon to Jones) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Vance, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "Twenty-sixth Street – North (Chesterfield to Jones) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Twenty-sixth Street – North (Chesterfield to Jones) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "Twenty-Sixth Street – North (Chesterfield to Jones) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Twenty-sixth Street – North (Chesterfield to Jones) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "Sixth Street (Forbes to Chesterfield) Sanitary Sewer Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Sixth Street (Forbes to Chesterfield) Sanitary Sewer Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Vance, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "Sixth Street (Forbes to Chesterfield) Sanitary Sewer Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Sixth Street (Forbes to Chesterfield) Sanitary Sewer Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Vance and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "Twenty-seventh Street Sanitary Sewer System Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Twenty-seventh Street Sanitary Sewer System Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Vance and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "Twenty-seventh Street Sanitary Sewer System Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Vance, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Twenty-seventh Street Sanitary Sewer System Local Improvement Construction Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

#### UNFINISHED BUSINESS

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Special Assessment report of Mr. A.R. MacKenzie, and the Standardized Scale of Salaries for employees, be laid over for consideration at a Special meeting to be arranged at the call of His Worship the Mayor.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that this Council do now resolve itself into Committee of the Whole.

Alderman Cartwright was appointed Chairman.

#### IN COMMITTEE

## **IN COUNCIL**

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the above report of the Committee of the Whole be adopted.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Vance and resolved that tenders for the grading and levelling of the Easterly portion of Block 216, D.L. 545, to be used as a recreation ground, be called for at the earliest possible date.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the meeting adjourn.

Whereupon the meeting adjourned.

Signed: G.H. Morden, Mayor